
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Thursday, September 27, 2018 - 2:00 PM

1000 Main Street Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business
hours. The agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at www.cambriacsd.org.
The District Office hours are Monday - Thursday, and every other Friday from 9:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m.
Please call 805-927-6223 if you need any assistance. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents
shall be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any
questions regarding the agenda.

1. OPENING

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Establishment of Quorum

D. Report from Closed Session

E. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item)

A. Sheriff's Department Report

B. CCSD Fire Chief's Report

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion additional
comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.)

Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction of the Board but
not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot discuss or act on items not on the
agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips (available at the entry) should be submitted to the
District Clerk.

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to discuss a consent
item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be made. Such items are pulled for

1

http://


separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a whole is acted upon.

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE AUGUST 2018 EXPENDITURE REPORT

B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE AUGUST 1, 2018 AND AUGUST 30, 2018 SPECIAL
MEETING MINUTES AND AUGUST 23, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINTUES

C. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 29-2018 UPDATING THE
ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT

D. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 28-2018 REAPPOINTING
JOYCE RENSHAW TO THE PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE
COMMISSION AND REAPPOINTING STANLEY COOPER AS AN ALTERNATE

5. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. DISCUSS AND CONSIDER ESTABLISHING CRITERIA FOR THE DECLARATION OF
A STAGE 3 WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY

B. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO APPLY FOR ASSISTANCE TO FIRE
FIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM FOR RADIO REPLACEMENT

6. BOARD MEMBER, COMMITTEE & LIAISON REPORTS

A. Board Member, Committee & Liaison Reports

7. MANAGER REPORTS

A. General Manager's Report

B. Finance Manager's Report

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal
agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken except to
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda by majority vote.

9. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Estimated time: 60 Minutes)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 
Titles: Acting General Manager, Interim General Manager and General Manager.

B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6
Agency Designated Representative: Timothy Carmel
Titles: Acting General Manager, Interim General Manager and General Manager.

2



Cambria CSD Fire Department  
September 27, 2018 CCSD Board Meeting 

August 2018 

Prevention and Education 

• 1 Residential rough/hydro inspection were completed 

• 3 Fire final inspections 

• 2 Residential site visits for building questions 

• 5 Fire plan reviews 

o 610 Warren

o 324 Bristol

o 2471 Banbury

o 343 Harvey

o 2350 Marlborough

• 12 Engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted

• 1 Public education events

• 6 Residential smoke/carbon monoxide detectors were installed and or the batteries changed

• 1 Fire Engine and Station tours

Hydrants Maintenance & Testing 

Date Water Used Hydrants Completed Hours 

2017 5,418 98 98 

January - July 0 119 91 

August 0 0 0 

Total 5,418 217 189 

Meetings and Affiliations 

• SLO County Chiefs mtg August 1st, 0900 Templeton 

• Firesafe Focus Group mtg August 8th, 1500 Cambria 

• CCSD Board mtg August 23rd, 1400 Cambria 

• Fire Ad Hoc mtg August 30th, 1400 Cambria 

  Operations and News 

• Training hours: 89.7 hours, Training for the month of August was primarily focused on the following

topics:

o Firefighter rescue, SCBA confidence

o EMS skills/policy review

o ICS

o Strategy and tactics

o Wildland refresher mobile attack/progressive hoselays

o Engineer training

Grant Updates 

• HMGP NOIs declined

• Awaiting next opening of AFG, expected next month

Fire Statistics are attached for your review 

S.R. 2.B.3



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18  Totals

Fire 0 1 0 0 3 1 1 0 6

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical 48 38 41 49 43 30 52 46 347

(local patients/percentage) 40/83.3% 29/76.3% 36/87.8% 44/90% 33/76.7% 21/70% 40/76.9% 38/82.6% 281/80%

(non-local patients/percentage 8/16.7% 9/23.7% 5/12.2% 5/10% 10/23.3% 9/30% 12/23.1% 8/17.4% 66/20%

Ocean Rescue 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 3

Cliff Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicle TC 3 1 1 3 0 1 0 1 10

Hazardous Situations 5 7 9 4 5 2 1 5 38

Public Service Assist 17 21 18 17 6 12 19 20 130

False Alarms 15 14 16 9 5 24 16 17 116

Agency Assist 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mutual Aid 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 2 5

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire - In County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Ocean Rescue - In County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Cliff Rescue - In County) 1 0 0 2 0 0 1 4

(Vegetation Fire - Out of County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Auto Aid 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 1 5

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire) 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 1 5

(Vehicle Accident) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Investigations 0 1 0 0 3 1 1 0 6

Monthly Response Totals 85 83 84 79 68 70 93 91 0 0 0 0 653

S.R. 2.B.4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, August 1, 2018 2:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

President Rice called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: Amanda Rice, Jim Bahringer, Harry Farmer and David Pierson. 
 
Directors absent: Aaron Wharton 
 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, Administrative Services Officer/District 
Clerk Monique Madrid, Interim Finance Manager Alleyne LaBossiere, and District 
Counsel Timothy Carmel. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Public Comment: 
None. 

 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING CANCELLING THE AUGUST 30, 

2018 PUBLIC HEARING AND RESCHEDULING AND RENOTICING THE 
PROPOSITION 218 PROTEST HEARING FOR PROPOSED INCREASES TO 
WATER, SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY AND SEWER RATES 

 
District Counsel introduced the item and explained some issues and concerns causing 
the need to revisit this matter. 

 
Public Comment:  
Donald Archer  
Sherry Bell  
Tina Dickason  
Christine Heinrichs 
Tom Gray 
Dennis Perry 
 
Board discussion followed. 

 
Vice President Bahringer suggested that the District has met the legal requirements of 
Proposition 218 and does not need to re-notice individuals. 
 
President Rice suggested information be added to advise the public this is new 
information. 
 
Director Farmer commented that one of the problems that has happened last month is 
that the District has endeavored to do a rate increase and apparently has done it as 

20



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

incompetently as possible. He feels discouraged about what has taken place so far. He 
believes the ball has been dropped and the guidelines are not the problem. He supports 
sending a protest form rate increase notice.  

 
Vice President Bahringer moved to keep the original hearing date, consider the notice 
given as valid and that additional outreach be done to ensure that the public knows how 
they can protest. 
 
The motion failed for a lack of a second. 
 
Director Pierson moved to set a new hearing date and send out new notices. 
  
Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion with the revision that the notice in the 
agenda packet be scrutinized and to set a new date. 
 
Board discussion followed. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Pierson, Bahringer, Farmer, Rice) 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Wharton) 

 
Director Pierson suggested the Rate Ad Hoc Committee review the new notice before it 
goes out. 
 
The Board agreed to have the Rate Ad Hoc Committee review the new notice before it 
goes out. 
 
Board discussion followed regarding the new hearing date. 
  
District Counsel suggested Thursday, October 4, 2018 for the new hearing.  

 

Vice President Bahringer moved to send a new notice and set the new hearing on 
October 4, 2018. 
 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Bahringer, Pierson, Farmer, Rice) 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Wharton) 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved to adopt the template that is in today’s staff report as 
modified by the ad hoc committee and, if there are no substantial changes, that the ad 
hoc committee has the authority to make sure everything is spelled right; if there are 
substantial changes recommended by the ad hoc committee, they have to come back to 
the Board.  
 

21



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

Director Pierson suggested directing the ad hoc committee to beef up the area where 
work that needs to be done is described, even to the point of including a brief CIP list.  
 
President Rice suggested an amending motion to be more specific about what things are 
to be changed. She suggested the following changes: 
 

1. Notice alert stating “do not discard - this is an important notice.” 
2. Include a statement that no response essentially means supporting the rate 

increase. 
3. Finance and Infrastructure Committees will continue oversight of the funding and 

ensure that the money is being spent appropriately as part of the diligence of the 
Board. 

 
Vice President Bahringer doesn’t support all of #3. He suggests the standing committees 
will be monitoring the expenditure (water, wastewater or SWF) funds. The CIP list would 
go beyond good practice. He supports the re-notice alert. He doesn’t support #2. 
 
Director Farmer would like to see a statement in the mailer that a non-response is 
considered a yes vote. 
 
President Rice stated there’s not a majority to go that direction. 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved that we send the notice out as in the agenda packet, 
with minor modifications as suggested by Director Pierson, to include the fact that the 
Infrastructure and Finance Committees will be monitoring the expenditure of any funds 
that are gained through the notice and that the outside of the envelope state that it’s a 
revised notice and that a form be provided on the District’s website and state in the 
notice that the form is available in the office.  
 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Nay 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 3-Ayes (Bahringer, Pierson, Rice) 1-Nay (Farmer), 1-Absent (Wharton) 

 

Director Farmer moved to include a protest form in the mailer. 
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Nay 
Director Pierson- Nay 
Vice President Bahringer- Nay 
Director Wharton- Absent 
 
Motion Failed: 1-Aye (Farmer) 3-Nays (Rice, Pierson, Bahringer), 1-Absent (Wharton) 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved to direct staff to send a separate letter to each person 
that has protested as of this date, explaining the options they have. 
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 

 

22



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

Board discussion followed. 
 
Vice President Bahringer withdrew his motion.  

 
Vice President Bahringer moved to add language within the new 218 notice that states if 
you have previously filed a protest with the district, you need to refile a notice with this 
notification.  
 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
District Counsel suggested not sending separate letters to people who have already 
protested, if you state clearly in the new notice that if you have already protested, it’s not 
going to count, and you will need to protest again. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Bahringer, Pierson, Farmer, Rice) 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Wharton) 

 
B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE REAL PROPERTY 

TRANSFER AGREEMENT WITH THE LAND CONSERVANCY OF SAN LUIS 
OBISPO COUNTY FOR THE TRANSFER OF THREE (3) LOTS 

 
The General Manager introduced the item and asked for questions.  
 
District Counsel provided a brief summary of the item and referenced the MOU and 
stated this was previously continued from the last regular Board meeting. 
 
Board discussion followed. 
 
Daniel Bohlman was present to answer questions. 
  
Vice President Bahringer moved to accept the lots if owner agrees to take on the 
removal of the tree that is a hazard to the neighboring property and cover the cost of the 
tree removal prior to the close of escrow and if not, then bring it back to the Board for 
consideration. 

 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Bahringer, Pierson, Farmer, Rice) 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Wharton) 

 
4. MANAGER REPORTS 

 

A. General Manager's Report 

23



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 
General Manager Jerry Gruber provided a brief summary of the General Manager's 
report and a PowerPoint presentation of infrastructure improvements made with funds 
received as a result of the last rate increase. 
 

B. Finance Manager's Report 
 

Interim Finance Manager Alleyne LaBossiere provided a brief summary of the Finance 
Manager's report. 

 

5. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 

The General Manager strongly encouraged the Board to consider attending the CSDA 
annual conference, although it’s the same time as the regular Board meeting. He 
suggested possibly changing the date of the September regular Board meeting in order 
attend. 
 
President Rice stated it may not be the right year to be spending money on director 
travel, even though we need board training. 

 
Director Pierson asked if there will be a closed session in August.  
 
President Rice answered yes. 
 
Public Comment:  
Jerry McKinnon 

 

6. ADJOURN 
 

President Rice adjourned the meeting at 4:00 p.m. 
 

24



   S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 30, 2018 10:30 AM 
 

 
1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 
President Rice called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 
A quorum was established. 
 
Directors present: Amanda Rice, Jim Bahringer, Harry Farmer, Aaron Wharton and 
David Pierson. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Public Comment: 
Jeff Hellman-commented there is a high turnover. 32 employees here, 16 in Templeton. 
Mark Rochefort-prior career he made decisions and they aren’t perfect. They are made in 

the context of alternatives, with research. Look to yourselves for alternatives that 
are demonstrably better and if not, you are compelled to assess before taking 
steps.   

Mike Lyons-No public access to knowledge of performance. Asking to make comments 
other closed session where the public is invited to make comments like this is a 
personal attack and innuendo.   

Lucia Capacione-is a citizen and rate payer, a professional from Head Start and other 
companies, use principles before personalities, rates and penalties are due to inept 
admin, turnover, red alarm, finances mismanaged, failure to meet deadlines costing 
money and is common knowledge.   

Richard Morris-puzzled by sequence. Doesn’t know personnel we’re talking about. How do 
these people know who it is? This is not the way to handle. Suspects collusion, 
asks District Counsel to look into it. Questions the motive of Board and how they 
have handled this, seems like a planned character assassination.   

Clyde- doesn’t like the animosity here of people who disagree with the hidden agenda to 
drag someone through the mud making Jerry Gruber the scapegoat for the Board’s 
action. We have to live with ourselves, he is surprised and disgusted, this should be 
based on fairness.   

Christine Heinrichs-Cambria is affected by costs of the budget and has appearance of 
being balanced but the SWF has thrown the finances into chaos. Review the 
finances now. What will the plant cost in the future? The CPO is paid $200,000 per 
year. GM says he doesn’t know the costs to run SWF, borrowing has been denied 
due to debts of the past decade and the course of high tech and costs. Finances 
and resources are limited and Gruber acted on BOD direction. BOD bid him a fond 
farewell but without pay. Will take better strategies for revenue. 

Janine Jacobs-character and pay raise more important than work. Has seen GM jogging 
on Moonstone, at gym; should discuss with staff and secretary as they will know 

25



   S.R. 4.B. 

 

how delinquent. Repair of pipes, leak lasted a long time before found, how much of 
pipes were addressed? Communication to Jerry Gruber without responses. GM 
knows more about operations and didn’t stand up to the Board.   

Claudia Worthen Harmon-couple things she witnessed were meeting one year ago with 
Jerry and others, Jerry said the waitlist won’t be a problem much longer. She 
thought it would go away. There was a man in lobby waiting 2 hours and she told 
him get in and see him now. It should be easy to see the GM. She talked to 
employee who teases him that he takes 2 hour lunches and leaves early because 
he lives in Nacimiento.   

Christina Tobin-Agrees with Mike Lyons that Jerry Gruber is a scapegoat. Problem is 
majority of Board and Proposition 218 rate increase. Organization is probably 36 
employees and 35 years ago was only 7 employees. Thanks Harry Farmer for 
asking where is the rate increase going to go. Look at pensions. States Jerry is 
going to get multiple pensions. Still time to make changes. Use the protest form.   

Tina Dickason-Not all about character assassination. In 8 years many have spoken of 
performance on numerous occasions. Wrote a letter for performance in 2017. She 
was accused and he had to answer the Regional Board. He was hired as the Utility 
Manager and then walked into the GM position. No recruitment, etc.   

Mary Maher-first opportunity to speak. This is appalling. She was a manager for personnel 
and never had a place where others were allowed to speak poorly. Base decision 
on facts and data. We need good leadership for the team. The GM job is 
controversial. Focus on person. The try to follow your leadership and back him up.  

Pamela Christy-some comments are good. When someone does a bad job, they don’t get 
to retire. Shouldn’t be allowed. McCabe cut off with Jerry Gruber. Track record 
shouldn’t do it. She shouldn’t have to move with him retiring with full benefits.   

 
Vice President Bahringer stated that one director went out of her way to make sure this 
atmosphere was created. It was not Board approved or an action by the Board. He stated 
he doesn’t feel it is appropriate.   
 
Board President stated she wanted to tell the public they could speak at public comment it 
is their right. 

 
3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

President Rice adjourned the meeting to closed session at 10:35 a.m. 
 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE Pursuant to 
 Government Code Section 54957 

26



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, August 23, 2018 2:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 

 

A. Call to Order 
 

President Rice called the meeting to order at 2:04 p.m. 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: Amanda Rice, Jim Bahringer, Harry Farmer, Aaron Wharton and 
David Pierson. 

 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, 
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid and Interim Finance 
Manager Alleyne LaBossiere. 

 

D. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions 
 

President Rice asked the Board for any additions or deletions. There were none made. 

 

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item) 
 

A. Sheriff's Department Report 
 

Sergeant Odom spoke on behalf of Commander Voge and provided a summary of 
recent activities in Cambria for the Sheriff's Department. 
 

B. CCSD Fire Chief's Report 
 

CCSD Fire Chief William Hollingsworth provided a report of recent activities in Cambria. 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion 

additional comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.) 
 

Public Comment:  
Sherry Bell 
Aaron Hanke 
Matthew Joachim  
Donn Howell 
Mike Lyons  

Dennis Perry 

27



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 

 

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE JULY 2018 EXPENDITURE REPORT 
 

B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE JULY 11, 2018, JULY 12, 2018 AND JULY 23, 
2018 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND JULY 26, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

 
C. CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT DONN HOWELL TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 

COMMITTEE TO FILL THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF 
MURIL CLIFT 
 

President Rice asked for any items to be pulled.  

Director Farmer reviewed the expenditure report and asked questions regarding gas 
cost and District employees driving District vehicles home with gas paid for by the 
District. How can we determine what costs are being spent in Water and Wastewater 
Departments? He would like the staff to provide to the Board the cost breakout for each 
Department’s spending on fuel from home to the office. He’d like to correct the spelling 
of Karen Pierson to Pearson under public comment and correct Committee member 
Pierson to Chairman Pierson in the July 11, 2018 meeting minutes.  

 
Vice President Bahringer moved to approve the consent agenda with Director Farmer’s 
suggested changes to the minutes. 

 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

 
Motion passed unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

5. HEARINGS AND APPEALS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 
 

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND ADOPT RESOLUTION 26-2018 
APPROVING THE FINAL CCSD BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 

 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item, reviewed the staff recommendation 

and reviewed a few highlights. He thanked Mr. LaBossiere for his superb work on the 

budget and thanked the Finance Committee for their work on the budget.  

  
Director Pierson provided a summary of the most recent Finance Committee meeting. 
He stated the allocated overhead in the current permanent budget was suggested by the 
Finance Committee and that is why you are seeing what you see. You are seeing the 
methodology that was approved by the Finance Committee. 

 
Director Pierson directed staff to be prepared to have a new budget based on rates 
passing or not passing for the October Finance Committee meeting.  

 

President Rice opened the public hearing. 
 
No public comment was received. 

28



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 
President Rice closed the public hearing. 

 
Director Pierson moved to provide direction to staff to have the deficits in the SWF fund 
be covered by the excess money in the Water Fund first and then going into the General 
Fund reserve funds. 
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Director Pierson- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Abstain 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 

 

Motion passed: 4-Ayes (Pierson, Rice, Wharton, Bahringer), 0-Nays, 0-Absent, 1-
Abstain (Farmer) 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved to adopt Resolution 26-2018 approving the final CCSD 
budget for fiscal year 2018/2019.  

 

Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
President Rice stated to the General Manager in the resolution if you do need to 
suspend the budget for some reason to protect the funding, that you’re supposed to be 
reporting to the Board right away. 
 
General Manager Gruber indicated he understood. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Abstain 
President Rice- Aye 

 

Motion passed: 4-Ayes (Bahringer, Pierson, Wharton, Rice), 0-Nays, 0-Absent, 1-
Abstain (Farmer) 
 

6. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 
 

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF INTER-FUND LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND PROVIDING DIRECTION REGARDING POLICY FOR 
FUTURE INTER-FUND LOANS 

 
General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. 
 
The Board had discussion regarding the inter-fund loan agreement. 
 
Public Comment: 
Donn Howell 

 
Director Farmer moved to approve the loan at a 5-year re-payment period at 2% interest. 
 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 

29



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 
Vice President Bahringer asked that the minutes reflect a possible future consideration 
for an inter-fund loan which was paid for ACE work in the amount of $157,000. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

 

Motion passed unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

President Rice moved to refer the inter-fund loan policy to the Finance Committee to 
come up with a policy and bring back to the Board with no date certain. 

 

Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 

 

Motion passed unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT POLICY B-02-18 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. 

 

Vice President Bahringer moved to adopt policy B-02-18. 
 

Director Wharton seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

 

Motion passed unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 
 

7. BOARD MEMBER, COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS 
 

A. Board Member, Committee and Liaison Reports 
 

Director Pierson commented on the last Fire Safe Focus meeting. They will approach 
cuttings of weeds twice annually for fire protection. 

 
Vice President Bahringer commented on the last Infrastructure Committee meeting, 

explaining there appears to be a desire by the public to direct staff on tasks. He then had 

a public agency organizational model presented on the screen during the meeting. He 

provided an example of various managers in a corporation providing conflicting direction 

to staff, illustrating a conflict of priorities and duties to employees who should be taking 

direction from the gatekeeper. He would like to see a policy that staff will not be 

30



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

expected to respond to individual constituents as they do not understand the workload of 

staff. He asked the Board for input and if the Board would support placing his chart on 

the CCSD website. 
 

President Rice stated this speaks to the critical importance of the gatekeeper who is 
responsible for staff duties and critical importance of communication. Staff can tell them 
they need to redirect their question to the gatekeeper. She doesn't believe the term 
gatekeeper is the best description of the responsible individual. 

 
Director Farmer reported on attending the recent Forest Committee meeting and a Cal Poly 
Professor presented at the meeting. California has the tallest trees in the world. The 
August meeting brought up weed abatement concerns regarding the guidelines. The Fire 
Chief removed some parcels and that is problematic. The Forest Committee is hoping to 
have Rick Hawley provide a presentation soon. He recently attended the FFRP meeting. 
The kitchen tour was successful and the tour proceeds equaled $17,000. The April 12, 
2018 FFRP tour of the ranch was very successful and geared for the Spanish speaking 
community. 

 
Director Wharton commented on the expenditure report and explained the $4,000 for the 

deposit on the office furniture and changes will save future expenses. It is for used office 

furniture. 

 

8. MANAGER REPORTS 
 

A. General Manager's Report 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber provided a brief summary of the General Manager's 
report and a PowerPoint presentation. 

 

Vice President Bahringer stated that there have been a lot of major upgrades and 

improvements made during his tenure. He has had emails from individuals who believe 

nothing has been done. He commended Mr. Gruber for doing as much as he has done 

with as little as he has had. 

 

B. Finance Manager's Report 
 

Interim Finance Manager Alleyne LaBossiere provided a brief summary of the Finance 
Manager's report. 

 

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 

Public Comment:  
Mike Lyons 

 
Vice President Bahringer stated the Board of Supervisors got an update on the effect of 
Accessory Dwelling Units and it will have a beneficial effect in Cambria. The permit will 
be ministerial not discretionary. The plan is to have something in place in 2019 and until 
then the State rules apply. 
 
Director Farmer stated this is due to the increase in vacation rentals and Airbnb, as a 
result there are fewer rentals available. 
 
President Rice thinks this item would be appropriate for a future agenda. 

 
Director Pierson stated that both Standing Committees have asked for us to consider the 
structure of the committees and would like this on the next agenda. 

 

31



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

President Rice would like the following items on a future agenda, but not necessarily 
next month. 
 
1. Review the Water Efficiency Plan 
2. Issues relating to emergencies: maybe an additional emergency route out of town 

 
Director Farmer wants a standing committee or a sub-committee to address water 
resourcefulness and grant funding. 

 
President Rice moved to have the structure of standing committees, emergency exit 

route out of town, review of the Water Efficiency Plan and Accessory Dwelling Unit and 

potential impacts on a future agenda. 
 

Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 

 

Motion passed unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

Vice President Bahringer moved to look at triggers for starting the SWF under 
emergency conditions and provide guidance to the County and the Coastal Commission 
as to type of use on next month’s agenda.  
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 

 

Motion passed unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

Director Farmer moved to have a substantial and specific report on how current rate 
increase monies are being used, the where, why and how at the next meeting. 
 
The motion died for a lack of a second. 

 

10. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Estimated time: 60 Minutes) 
 

President Rice adjourned the meeting to closed session at 6:00 p.m. 

 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54957  
Title: General Manager 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.8  
Property APN: 013-151-031 
Property Negotiators: County of San Luis Obispo, Phil Acosta Agency Negotiators, 

General Manager and District Counsel 

32



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

Negotiation: Price and Terms (Public Road, Slope and Temporary Construction 
Easements) 

 
C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. 

Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Group: International Association of 

Fire Fighters (IAFF) 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. 

Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Organization: Services Employee 

International Union 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. 
Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Unrepresented group, Management and 
Confidential Exempt Employees 

 
F. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Pursuant 

to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(4) involving one potential case. 

 

33



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.C. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
  Alleyne LaBossiere, Interim Finance Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  September 27, 2018 Subject: CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF  
  RESOLUTION 29-2018 UPDATING THE  
  ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR 
  CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES   
  DISTRICT 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 29-2018 updating the banking powers 
authority as listed in the attached Exhibit A, Authorized Banking Powers. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
On July 12, 2018, the Board approved the assignment of banking powers. With recent personnel 
changes, the following revisions have been made: 
 

• Finance Manager’s name inserted, Pam Duffield 

• Removed Interim Finance Manager, Alleyne LaBossiere 

• Added Nancy Gravender to the payroll tax transfers and payroll deposits 

• Removed General Manager, Jerry Gruber 

• Added District Engineer, Bob Gresens for check signing authority (he traditionally had this 
authority, but it was inadvertently removed on the July 12, 2018 Exhibit).  
 

The last adopted assignment of banking powers has been revised and is presented today for 
the Board’s review and approval.   
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment:  Resolution 29-2018 
  Exhibit A to Resolution 29-2018 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER____WHARTON____PIERSON_____ 

34



RESOLUTION 29-2018 
September 27, 2018 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

UPDATING THE ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR THE  
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

  
WHEREAS, the Cambria Community Services District (“CCSD”) has bank 
accounts at Pacific Premier Bank (“PPB”), as well as an investment account with 
the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”); and 
 
WHEREAS, PPB and LAIF require an approved resolution specifying which 
banking powers are assigned to CCSD officials and staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to update the assignment of banking powers for the 
CCSD’s bank and investment accounts. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 
Cambria Community Services District that banking powers are hereby granted to 
the individuals listed within the attached Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein 
by this reference. This Resolution supersedes all previously adopted Resolutions 
relating to the assignment of banking powers.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of September, 2018. 
 
 
            
             
       Amanda Rice    
       President, Board of Directors 
 
  
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Monique Madrid     Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk      District Counsel 

35



 

           Page 1 of 2 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 29-2018 

September 27, 2018 

AUTHORIZED BANKING POWERS 

 

AGENT’S NAME AND TITLE OR POSITION 

 

A Amanda Rice, President 

B Jim Bahringer, Vice President 

C Harry Farmer, Director 

D Aaron Wharton, Director 

E David Pierson, Director 

F Vacant, General Manager 

G Pam Duffield, Finance Manager 

H Robert Gresens, District Engineer 

I Mary Chris Cox, Administrative Technician III 

J Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 

K Nancy Gravender, Finance Specialist 

L Stephanie Salvi, Administrative Technician III 

M Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

Holder of  Description of Power        No. of Signatures 

  Power          Required 

 

None   All Powers Listed.           N/A 
 

F,J   Open any deposit or share account(s) in the name of the CCSD.         2 
 

A,B,C,D,E,F,H,J  Endorse Checks and orders for the payment of money or to           2 
   otherwise withdraw or transfer funds on deposit. 
 

F,J Upon receiving Board of Directors’ approval, borrow money               2  

                                    on behalf and in the name of the CCSD, sign, execute  

                                     and deliver promissory notes or other evidence of indebtedness. 
 

F,J   Enter into a written lease for the purpose of renting, maintaining,           2 
   accessing and terminating a safe deposit box. 
 

A,B,C,D,E,F Endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage or pledge bills receivable, warehouse        2 
 receipts, bills of lading, stocks, bonds, real estate or other property now or  

hereafter owned or acquired by the CCSD as security for sums borrowed, 

 and to discount the same, unconditionally guarantee the payment of all bills 

 received, negotiated or discounted and to waive demand, presentment,  

protest, notice of protest and notice of non-payment. 

 
 

           

36



 

 

 

 

           Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

Holder of  Description of Power        No. of Signatures 

  Power          Required 

 

F,G,J   Transfer LAIF funds into/out of CCSD bank accounts.        N/A  
 

G,I,J   Issue stop-payment of checks and order for payment of money        N/A 
   and like activities. 
 

F,G,I,J,K,L,M  Make account inquires and deposits.          N/A 
 

G,I,J,K,L,M  Pick up bank statements.               1 
 

G,I,J,K   Recurring electronic payment of federal and California payroll taxes.       N/A 
 

G,I,J,K   Recurring electronic payroll direct deposits.           N/A 
 

G,I,J,K,L  Recurring electronic deposits into CCSD accounts.         N/A 
 

G,I,J,K   Recurring electronic transfers between CCSD accounts.        N/A 
 

G,I,J,K   Recurring manual transfers between CCSD accounts.                    1 

 

 

37



 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO. 4.D. 
       
FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
  Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: September 27, 2018  Subject: CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF  
        RESOLUTION 28-2018 REAPPOINTING 
        JOYCE RENSHAW TO THE PARKS, 
        RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE  
        COMMISSION AND REAPPOINTING 
        STANLEY COOPER AS AN ALTERNATE  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 28-2018 reappointing Joyce 
Renshaw to the Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Commission (the  
“Commission), for the term commencing on October 23, 2018 and reappoint Stanley Cooper as 
Alternate to the Commission.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
No new fiscal impacts have been identified by the recommended action. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
Section 7.08.010 of the CCSD Municipal Code provides for a PROS Commission. The 
Commissioners are appointed by the Board of Directors and serve four-year terms and until they are 
replaced. Sections III. A and E of the PROS By-Laws provides as follows: 
 

A. The Commission shall consist of five members with full voting privileges. 
Commission shall interview applicants and forward recommendations on 
appointments for consideration by the Board of Directors. Commissioners shall 
be appointed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

 
E.  From the PROS recommended list of applicants, the CCSD Board of Directors may 

appoint up to three Alternate Commissioners who may substitute for absent 
members at the request of the Chair. Such Alternate Commissioners may 
participate in any PROS activities, as directed by the Commission Chair, but shall 
not have vote on matters of interest to the Commission unless serving in the place 
of a Regular Commission Member. 

 
The Commission held their regular meeting on September 4, 2018, where they took action to 
recommend that the CCSD Board of Directors reappoint Joyce Renshaw, and that the Board also 
reappoint Stanley Cooper as an Alternate to the Commission. 
 
Accordingly, the attached Resolution has been prepared for consideration by the Board of Directors 
to make the recommended appointments. 
 
Attachment:   J. Renshaw’s Application  
  S. Cooper’s Application 
  PROS Appointment Schedule 

Resolution 28-2018 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:___RICE ___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___WHARTON___PIERSON____ 

38



39



40



41



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE COMMISSION 

APPOINTMENT SCHEDULE 
Adopted by the Board of Directors on 1/18/2018 

 

Commissioner Date Appointed Term Expiration 

Steve Kniffen - Chair 12/17/15 12/31/19 

Kermit Johanssen 2/18/2016 (Appointed to 
Commissioner on 1/18/2018 to fill 
Unexpired Term of Stanley Cooper) 

10/23/2018 

Adolph Atencio 12/17/15 12/31/19 

Joyce Renshaw 10/23/2014 10/23/18 

Tim Roche 10/23/2014 10/23/18 

Teri Lord-Alternate 2/18/2016 2/18/2020 

Stanley Cooper-Alternate 2/18/2016 (Appointed to Alternate 
on 1/18/2018 to fill Unexpired 
Term of Kermit Johanssen) 

2/18/2020 

 
 
 

Ex Officio Members Date Appointed 

Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve 2/1/10 

Coast Unified School District 2/1/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
*Kermit Johanssen, Stanley Cooper and Teri Lord's term expiration dates have been revised to 
correct an earlier clerical error. 

42



  

RESOLUTION NO. 28-2018 
September 27, 2018 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
APPOINTING JOYCE RENSHAW TO THE 

PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE COMMISSION AND STANLEY 
COOPER AS ALTERNATE 

 
WHEREAS, Section 7.08.010 of the CCSD Municipal Code provides for a Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Commission, with commissioners who are 
appointed by the Board of Directors and who serve four-year terms and until they 
are replaced; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section III E of the PROS By-Laws also provides for the appointment 
of Alternate Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the PROS By-Laws, the PROS Commission has 
recommended that the Board of Directors appoint Joyce Renshaw and that the 
Board of Directors also appoint Stanley Cooper as Alternate to the Commission. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District that it hereby appoints Joyce Renshaw to the Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space Commission, and Stanley Cooper as Alternate to the 
Commission. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of September, 2018. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Amanda Rice, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel 
      District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
_________________________ 
Monique Madrid 
District Clerk 

43



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.A. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Bob Gresens, District Engineer   
 

Meeting Date: September 27, 2018 Subject: DISCUSS AND CONSIDER 
ESTABLISHING CRITERIA FOR THE 
DECLARATION OF A STAGE 3 
WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss and consider establishing the criteria for 
the declaration of a Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact associated with establishing criteria for the declaration of a Stage 3 
Water Shortage Emergency.  
 
DISCUSSION: 

The Board has requested an agenda item to discuss and consider establishing criteria for the 
declaration of a Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency. At the outset, it is important to keep a 
couple of things in mind. The CCSD’s current ability to operate the Sustainable Water Facility 
(“SWF”) under the emergency Coastal Development Permit (“Permit”) issued by San Luis 
Obispo County is only during a declared “Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency.” In that respect, 
the Permit states the following: 
 

This emergency permit is valid until such time that the CCSD-declared Stage 3 
Water Shortage Emergency has ended, or the project has been authorized to 
continue to serve existing development through approval of a regular Coastal 
Development Permit, whichever is sooner. While processing the regular Coastal 
Development Permit, the emergency water facility may only be re-activated and 
utilized to produce water in the event of the occurrence of another Stage 3 Water 
Shortage Emergency and only after the CCSD has issued a formal declaration of 
the existence of such a Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency. It is the intent of this 
condition, while processing the regular Coastal Development Permit, to enable use 
of the emergency water facility to produce water for existing development in 
Cambria during the existence of a declared Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency, 
since the community historically experiences severe periodic droughts. 

 
It should be noted that provisions for Stages 1, 2 and 3 water shortage emergencies are found 
in Chapter 4.12 of the CCSD Municipal Code, which was based on an earlier December 8, 2000 
Baseline Water Supply Analysis Report1. More recently, however, those provisions have not 
been the basis for declaring water shortage emergencies in Cambria. That is because Chapter 
4.12 and its provisions are based upon using a predictive model, which has not been field verified 

                                            
1 “Final Report, Baseline Water Supply Analysis, Cambria Community Services District,” Kennedy/Jenks 
Consultants, K/J 004621.00, Decmber8, 2000. 

44



 

 
 

2 

or calibrated to ensure its accuracy since that time. Additionally, staff believes that the impacts 
of global warming are beginning to be realized with more extreme variations in weather patterns. 
For example, events during 2013 and 2014 were associated with a high-pressure zone off the 
California Coast, which remained stationary for an unusually long period while diverting storms 
away from the Central Coast2. Although the past model serves as a satisfactory reference, there 
are other empirical factors that staff relies upon in projecting water supply and demand while 
applying provisions in State law (Water Code Section 350, et seq. and Water Code Section 375, 
et seq.) to implement restrictions and regulations during the water shortage emergencies.   
 
Use of “Stage 3” in the most recent Water Shortage Emergency declaration (January 30, 2014) 
was based upon Stage 3 being the most serious water supply situation warranting the imposition 
of severe restrictions and regulations3. The Permit also utilized that terminology, and the CCSD 
is currently only able to operate the SWF during a declared Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency. 
Therefore, until the CCSD can secure a regular Coastal Development Permit for the SWF, 
operation is limited to declared, severe water situations during the periodic droughts that are 
experienced by the community. 
 
When the recent Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency was declared in January, 2014 by adoption 
of Resolution 04-2014, it included recitals regarding the severity of the CCSD’s water supply 
situation. It also included the fact that on January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of 
California had declared a state of emergency due to record dry conditions and concerns over 
the State’s dwindling water supplies. That Proclamation also stated that “[l]ocal urban water 
suppliers and municipalities are called upon to implement their local water shortage contingency 
plans immediately in order to avoid or forestall outright restrictions that could become necessary 
later in the drought season.” 
 
Staff’s review of the CCSD’s water supplies in 2013 and 2014 led to the following conclusion:  

 
...the domestic water supply for the CCSD may be inadequate based upon the 
continued lack of precipitation and the current water levels in the aquifers that 
provide the domestic water supply for the CCSD, and specifically that water levels 
in the San Simeon and Santa Rosa Creek aquifers are such that staff has 
determined that the available water supply may be insufficient to meet demand. 

 
On Monday, July 18, 2018, staff met to discuss the current water supply status and the SWF. 
Discussion ensued relating to specific trigger mechanisms that would require the District to 
declare a Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency and allow the District to operate the SWF. It 
should be noted that recent amendments to the Title 22 permit for the SWF require sampling 
one month prior to starting the SWF, therefore staff will need to anticipate well levels and the 
gradient level with continued close monitoring, historical data and years of operational 
experience. Based upon the forgoing, staff recommends the following criteria should be used to 

                                            
2 Referred to in certain 2013-2014 news stories as the “Ridiculously Resilient High Pressure.” 
3 From the December 8, 2000 report, water reduction goals were set at: Stage 1 – a 7% reduction based on 
voluntary reductions; Stage 2 – a 15% reduction (about 3 units per permanent resident per month) including 
surcharges for exceeding maximum water use allotments; and, Stage 3 – reduce to provide only human 
consumption, sanitation, and fire protection needs (about 2 units per permanent resident per month).   

45



 

 
 

3 

monitor the CCSD’s water supply for specific circumstances that can form the basis for a new 
Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency declaration by the Board of Directors.  
 

1. WBE Monitoring Well falls below three feet.  
2. San Simeon Well Field reaches eight feet. 
3. Santa Rosa Well 4 has historically operated at its peak performance when the well level 

remains between 40-50 feet above mean sea level. In 2014 the Santa Rosa Well 4 
reached a level between 20-25 feet and the District experienced operational challenges 
associated with the running of Santa Rosa Well 4 at that time. After careful 
consideration, District staff still feels it would be imprudent to allow the Santa Rosa Well 
4 to get to levels equal to 2014, therefore staff feels that the minimum would be between 
30-35 above mean sea level as an additional trigger mechanism.  

4. The gradient between the treated wastewater mound below the percolation basins and 
the upstream potable wells reaches zero. 

5. Staff continues to also monitor production and compare it to an estimated amount of 
water remaining within each aquifer based on groundwater levels, although there is not 
a methodology that the District has to determine the amount of riparian water use or 
consumption remaining at a given time in each aquifer. Additionally, there are other 
factors that can impact demand projections, which go beyond modeling. A recent case 
in point is the reopening of Hwy 1, which should increase tourism. Staff will continue to 
monitor production closely.  

6. The timing of when surface flow ceases each year and the corresponding time that 
seasonal rains serve to recharge each aquifer. Staff has found that from 1987 through 
2017, the average month and day when flow ceased at Palmer Flats was July 11.  For 
this same period, the 25th percentile ranking for flow to stop was June 11. In comparison 
to the 2013 and 2014 drought years, flow at Palmer Flats stopped much earlier (May 29 
and April 17, respectively). A statistical method was developed in the earlier 2000 
modeling effort to estimate this timing, which tied to a Southern Oscillation Index value 
for the month of October. Generally, earlier surface flow stoppage at Palmer Flats 
results in more stress on dry-season supply. In reviewing the most recent drought years 
of 2013 and 2014, the October SOIs were -1.9 and -8.0, which per the 2000 study should 
have correlated with a normal or wet year. However, we know this was not the case, 
which casts doubt on the past model’s accuracy in predicting the start and length of the 
dry season. For purposes of developing a trigger for the flow timing concern, staff is 
suggesting whenever the flow at Palmer Flats ceases before June 11, it should be 
viewed as an early alert point to more vigilantly monitor well levels and to consider 
declaring a Stage 3 should a Stage 2 already be in effect. This would be coupled with 
analyzing the supply in each aquifer and projected demand.   

7. A catastrophic failure of either or both aquifers would immediately trigger the need for a 
Stage 3 declaration.  

8. A sustained large wildland or forest fire depending on the intensity and duration could 
also be a reason for declaring a Stage 3.  

9. Large earthquake that would cause damage to the District’s wells.  
10. A tsunami that would impact the District’s wells.  

 
 

46



 

 
 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___WHARTON____ PIERSON_____ 

47



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.B. 
       
FROM:  William Hollingsworth         
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  September 27, 2018 Subject: CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO  
        APPLY FOR ASSISTANCE TO FIRE 
        FIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM FOR  
        RADIO REPLACEMENT 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   
Staff recommends that the Board authorize and direct staff to apply for the Assistance to Fire 
Fighters Grant (AFG) Program for the replacement of portable and mobile radios used for 
emergency service and response. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Each applicant is responsible for a 5% cost share. The CCSD would be responsible for 
accountability for all aspects of the grant. The proposed application specifies that the grant 
funded equipment will be used exclusively by the CCSD Fire Department for purposes of 
enhancing both regular and emergency operations. The total cost would be $151,110.00.  The 
total fiscal impact to the CCSD is estimated at $7,556.00. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
Existing radios have exceeded the expected 10-year life span. The State of California OES and 
Fire Marshal Office annually update radio channels for improved interoperability for Mutual Aid 
and Automatic Aid response. The current portable and mobile radios are no longer 
programmable, potentially leaving crews out of communication at critical times. They have 
limited use in mountainous terrain and have difficulty connecting to secondary repeaters when 
primary systems are down. Current radios do not meet the required FCC P-25 Standard. 
 
The applicant must be compliant with AFG requirements, including being current with past 
grants, closeouts, and other reporting requirements. Upon notification by the AFG Program 
Office, the applicant shall not purchase or distribute grant funded assets or provide grant funded 
contractual services to non-compliant partner organizations.   
 
In September of 2018, AFG announced the next federal grant application period, which will open 
September 24, 2018 and close October 26, 2018. The CCSD Fire Department proposes to apply 
for a complete radio system upgrade. Per the Funding Opportunity Announcement, the purchase 
of emergency radio equipment fits the application criteria of high priority items.   
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___  RICE ____ BAHRINGER___FARMER ___ WHARTON ___ PIERSON____  

48



 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.A. 
 
FROM:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: September 27, 2018     Subject: MANAGER’S REPORT  
 

GENERAL MANAGER: Attached please find the various Department managers and supervisors staff 
reports for the Board’s review. The Departments are Administration, Human Resources, Engineering, 
Fire, Facility and Resources, Water, Wastewater and Sustainable Water Facility. Over the past several 
years, these department reports have evolved to show both the community and the Board the broad 
range of responsibility and the scope of services that the CCSD provides to the community, visitors, the 
CCSD Board of Directors and to each other.  
 
Please join me in welcoming our new Finance Manager, Pamela Duffield, to our team. She will be starting 
in her new position on October 1, 2018. Please take a minute to introduce yourself and say hello to her 
when you are in the Administration Office.   
 
ADMINISTRATION:  
During the end of August and throughout the month of September, the Administrative Services 
Officer/District Clerk and Deputy District Clerk worked on the following items:  
 
Human Resources: 

• Prepared for multiple labor negotiation meetings 

• Attended multiple labor negotiation meetings with both represented groups, closed session, and 
lead negotiator. 

• Met with several employees for various Human Resources matters 

Recruitment: 

• James Fredle started working as the Wastewater Operator Grade II on 9/4/2018. Welcome, 

James! 

• Nancy Gravender started working as the Finance Specialist – Payroll & Benefits on 9/4/2018. 

Welcome, Nancy! 

• Finalized the Finance Manager recruitment. Pamela Duffield will begin working in the 

Administration Office on October 1, 2018. Welcome, Pam! 

Trainings: 

• Emailed Directors and Managers regarding completing the Ethics AB 1234 webinars 

• Emailed Managers regarding attending LCW’s October workshop 

 

Contract Liaison: 

• Finalized the Brough Construction, Inc. public works contract 

• Finalized the Inter-Fund loan agreement  
 
Board Meetings: 

• Attended multiple agenda preparation meetings 

• Coordinated sending out staff report reminders to Managers  

• Finalized the August 2018 Resolutions 

• Coordinated with the Board of Directors and staff regarding the September 27, 2018 Regular 

meeting  

• Prepared for and published the September Special Board meeting agendas 

49



 
 

 

• Prepared for and published the October 4, 2018 Special meeting agenda packet 

• Posted the July approved Special and Regular meeting minutes 

• Followed up on Board action and document preparation and distribution 

 
Finance Committee: 

• Prepared for and published the September regular meeting agenda packet 

• Prepared the October regular meeting agenda packet for publishing 

• Multiple meetings to review various items related to the meeting 

• Sent out agenda review emails to Mr. Pierson and Mr. Siegler 

Infrastructure Committee: 

• Prepared for and published the September regular meeting agenda packet 

• Prepared the October regular meeting agenda packet for publishing 

• Multiple meetings to review various items related to the meeting 

• Sent out agenda review emails to Mr. Bahringer and Mrs. Dean 

PROS Commission: 

• Haley handles the creation, distribution and posting of the PROS Commission meeting agendas 
and minutes 

• Received PROS Commissioner applications  

• Extended the PROS Commission vacancy and revised the application 

• Posted the approved August regular meeting minutes 

• Prepared the October regular meeting agenda packet for publishing 

 
Meetings: 

• Prepared for and conducted bi-weekly Administrative Office staff meetings 

• Attended the PROS Committee meeting 

• Emailed GM and Board of Directors regarding various meeting reminders in Cambria 

• Attended weekly operational phone calls 

• Attended various meetings with multiple staff members regarding a wide variety of operational 
matters 

• Scheduled a meeting with Docuteam to review the parcel files 
 

Miscellaneous: 

• Worked on public record requests and responses, review documents, redact as appropriate and 
provide responses to the requestor 

• Participated in multiple operational meetings with various managers and administrative staff 

• Processed purchase orders for multiple vendors 

• Worked on the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence website requirements 

• Coordinated designing, remodeling and vacating the finance portion of the office. Coordinated 
with the Furniture Installation Team on installing the used cubicles in the Administrative Office. 
The vacant Finance office is expected to be relinquished in October 2018 when the lease is up 
for renewal 

• Responded to Mr. Albanese’s request to place an item on the Board agenda 

• Scheduled Docuteam box pickups  

• Ordered a new projector for the Veterans Hall and coordinated with AGP and Carlos on the 
installation 

Engineering Department: 

• Met with the District Engineer, Management Analyst and General Manager 

• Met with the Management Analyst for multiple operational matters 

 

50



 
 

 

Facilities & Resources Department: 

• Met with the Facilities & Resources Manager regarding work that needs to be done in the 

Administrative Office 

Fire Department: 

• Met with the Fire Chief  

 

Finance Department: 

• Tyler Incode: Will be postponed until the Finance Manager position is filled. 

• Met with the Interim Finance Manager on multiple occasions 

• Met with Interim Finance Manager to discuss and assist with multiple Finance department matters 

• Review and improve accounts payable process and provide support needed to staff 

• Led and monitored the Proposition 218 process 

• Met with the Finance staff regarding office reorganization 

Wastewater Department: 

• Met with Wastewater Department Supervisor 

Water Department: 

• Met with Water Department Supervisor 

FACILITIES AND RESOURCES: 
 

1. Fiscalini Ranch: 

a. Split Rail Fence: 

i. A split rail fence on the north end of the bluff trail was removed. The fence had 

been damaged from cars backing up and hitting it.  

ii. Fence was replaced with a new one by CCSD Staff 

2. Bluff Trail Re-Surfacing: 

a. Bluff Trail resurfacing project began on August 6 and was completed on August 31. 

During work, portions of the trail were closed off.  

b. In order to get this project done, several pieces of equipment were rented, including a 

ride on roller, 3 hand compactors and a mini skid steer. This is on top of two tractors, 

dump trailer, dump truck, 3 trucks, 2 trailers to transport equipment, and an ATV 

provided by CCSD.  

c. Material was delivered by Decry’s quarry on Santa Rosa Creek Rd.  

d. An initial layer of base was laid down across the trail and compacted. This initial layer 

was laid down in approximately 3 ½ days. A second layer of finely crushed base “sand” 

was laid down and compacted in an additional 3 days.  

e. Two access areas were created in order to transport material to the trail. The access 

areas were cleaned up and fences and signs installed by FFRP volunteers.  

f. In total over 300 tons of material was laid down on the trail.   

3. Erosion Gully Repair: 

a. Project began on September 4.  

b. Removal of the structure and rough grading was completed on September 4. Monte 

Soto from Civil Design Studios inspected the initial work.  

4. Hazardous Tree Removal: 

a. 10 dead and dangerous trees were cut, chipped and hauled away. Trees were identified 

during weed abatement/fire breaks on the Ranch. Trees were located on Ranch side of 

Madison St, Warren and Tipton.  

 

5. Trash Cans Main St.: 

a. All of the CCSD owned trash/recycle containers on Main St. were pressure washed.  

51



 
 

 

b. Work was performed at night as to not interfere with local businesses.  

6. Eucalyptus Project Phase II: 

a. Work on removal of eucalyptus trees under 18” diameter began on August 10.  

b. Work was performed by Cambria Pines Tree Service. Project was completed on 

September 14th. 

c. Funding for this project was provided by Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve. 

ENGINEER: 
Key engineering department activities since the August 23, 2018 Board meeting report (prior staff 
report prepared on August 15, 2018) to the date of this report’s preparation, which was September 17, 
2018), are summarized below. Please also see detailed discussions provided under the Wastewater, 
Water, and SWF subsections.     
 

• Sustainable Water Facility (SWF):  

o The Advanced Water Treatment Plant (AWTP) has remained offline. 
o Staff updated the SWF Operations, Maintenance and Monitoring Plan in response to 

comments received from the Water Board’s Jon Rokke and Jeff Densmore. The updates 
are currently under review by the Water Board 

o The August 2018 monthly self-monitoring report was submitted on time, which was on its 
due date of September 15, 2018. 

o The impoundment basin closure activities are continuing. As of September 15, 2018, 
approximately 400,000 gallons remain in the impoundment basin.   

o Chief Plant Operator Jim Green continues to work on preparations for restarting the 
facility. Should the SWF not need to go into production due to well levels being 
adequate, staff is still planning to perform an operational test this coming October. The 
operational test would recirculate water into the adjacent percolation basin, which was 
discussed and approved during an earlier July 20, 2018 field meeting with the Water 
Board’s Jon Rokke. The proposed testing will also allow for training to occur with senior 
operator Larry Moore’s input, which is important due to Larry’s pending retirement. 

o Staff is evaluating various means to empty the silt and water from the impoundment 
bottom as part of the final closure steps.   
 

• Influent Screen Installation at Wastewater Treatment Plant 
o A preconstruction meeting was held with Brough Construction on September 12, 2018.  

Brough is currently working on details associated with design of the catwalk area, as well 
as piping details. A request for a quotation on a proposed change order to improve the 
adjacent septage receiving station was also made by operating staff following this 
meeting. During the construction phase, project management is being transitioned from 
the District Engineer to the Chief Plant Operator. The District Engineer will remain 
involved by reviewing and approving proposed change orders and responding to 
requests for information.   
 

• Miscellaneous:   

o Permit Counter. For the 2018 Calendar Year: 2 Transfer of Positions, 15 Assignments, 

14 Voluntary Lot Mergers, 3 New/Re-Construction Applications, and 46 

Remodel/Change-of-Use Applications were received for processing. We have also 

processed 3 applications to extend ITS letters. 

o During the past month, Melissa Bland conducted 23 retrofit inspections. 
o SWRCB licensing of existing water rights remains in progress. 
o Staff attended the September 11, 2018 standing Infrastructure Committee meeting, 

which included preparing and giving a PowerPoint presentation on the CCSD’s 
Geographic Information System (GIS), its KeepTrak maintenance management 
program, and Plan-It CIP planning software. Related to questions raised during this 

52



 
 

 

meeting and an earlier meeting, staff researched and confirmed that the May 2018 
purchase of the Tyler InCode finance software included project cost accounting. This 
should provide a vast improvement in tracking project expenses, once this transition is 
completed. 

o Melissa Bland continued to assist the Administration Department with preparations 
associated with the ongoing Proposition 218 process. 

o Melissa is also working with Water and billing staff on completing the annual Water Loss 
Audit, which is required by the State. The audit is also a condition for receiving any 
future State grant or revolving fund money. During the week of September 17, staff will 
be having an audit validator review our draft water loss audit in detail. The final validated 
audit is due to the state by October 1, 2018.  

o Staff provided detailed information to the County on its ongoing Proposition 1 Grant 
application for certain wastewater treatment plan upgrades. The update is requesting a 
50% state match via the County and State’s Integrated Regional Water Management 
Plan (IRWMP). The total estimated cost for the work being requested amounts to 
approximately $1.4 million with a 50% match being $700,000.  There is considerably 
competition for the limited State grant funding being provided to the County. Our latest 
update to the grant application process was due to the County on August 31, 2018, 
which was met.  More information should be known on our grant application’s status by 
around the spring of 2019.  In the meantime, staff will continue to support this application 
process on an as-needed basis.  

 

• Well Levels 
o Current well levels are above average for this time of year.   

 
WASTEWATER: 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations  
 

• The catwalk hand rails on the digester have now been replaced. 

• While Nerelli Welding was onsite for the above work, we also had the hand rails on the stairs 

replaced. This was not part of the bid, so the cost ($4,175) was taken out of the plant operating 

budget (6032T). 

• Painting of the handrails was not included in the Nerelli Welding contract, so bids will be sought 

for that work assuming it cannot be done internally due to heavy operator workload. Rust has 

already developed on the newly installed handrails, so the painting and protective coating 

needs to be completed ASAP. 

• The kick-off meeting for the installation of the influent screen is scheduled for September 12, 

2018. (See District Engineer’s report for additional information.) 

• The July 18th kick-off meeting with PG&E went very well. A subsequent meeting has been set 

for early September to look at other ways the district can save on energy costs. 

• At the plant, Operator Toni Artho has been updating KeepTraK as we move forward with 

maintenance. Information such as pump identification numbers and suppliers are being added 

to the maintenance schedules.  

• In August, staff emptied the digesters and cleaned them out, removing the rags wrapped 

around the diffusers and the grit from the bottom.  

 

Collection Systems & Lift Stations 
 

• Check valves for lift station 9 have been received and will be installed this month. 

• Operator Toni Artho continues to update KeepTraK to include collection system assets. He has 

also been improving the information in the system to better represent what we have in the field. 

 

53



 
 

 

Laboratory:  

• Abalone Coast continued to provide the services of a certified laboratory analyst for those 

analyses that are reported to the state. Currently, Abalone’s Amanda Smith is calibrating the 

online pH meter monthly.  

Administrative:  

• James (Jim) Fredle has been hired to fill the vacant wastewater operator position at the WWTP. 
Jim has a Class III operating license, a T3 water operator license, and a laboratory analyst 
certification. Please join us in welcoming him onboard! 

 
WATER: 

1. The SWF remains offline. Water operator Larry Moore continues to assist SWF CPO James 

Green. Duties include maintenance of filter membranes, sampling, impoundment basin liner 

integrity testing, and other plant maintenance. On weekends, the on-call water operators 

document all observations made at the impoundment basin, including available freeboard, 

wildlife present, liner integrity and weather. 

2. SR4 well is running 5 days a week between the hours of 7:00 am to 3:30 pm. SR3 is 

currently running in the evenings and through the night on weekdays. We have only been 

running one San Simeon well at a time on weekdays, alternating between wells 1 and 2. On 

weekends, we pump water from SR3, and San Simeon wells 1 and 2. This method of water 

production gives time for wells to rest and allows for levels to rebound.   

3. At the SR4 well, Andy of Tough Automation installed a temporary alternate power source to 

the Hach analyzing equipment. This was installed to remedy damage sustained by a power 

surge we experienced in August. Andy also installed surge protection and an online UPS to 

protect computer equipment and well data. 

4. In August, the Water Department took possession of a Ditch Witch vacuum excavator trailer. 

The first leak that was repaired using the new machine was on Burton Circle. The leaking 

water line was underneath a concrete driveway and was surrounded by many AT&T phone 

lines. The use of the new Ditch Witch helped operators expose the leaking pipe safely 

without damaging the driveway or the AT&T lines. By using the vacuum excavator, the leak 

was repaired much faster and with much less stress and strain to operators. 

5. A new 1” water service line and 1” water meter was installed for a new construction project 

at 2090 Sherwood Dr. The water meter and service were transferred from a home that was 

demolished on Andover St. 

6. Yearly Cathodic Protection maintenance and inspection was conducted by Corrpro. Corrpro 

thoroughly inspects all Water Department tanks and makes sure the cathodic protection of 

the tanks is working properly. 

7. A water service line located at the 200 block of Worcester was prone to water leaks. In 

August, operators installed a new upgraded 1” water line from the water main to the meter. 

The upgraded line size and installation method will help ensure that this service line will not 

leak again in the future. 

8. As mentioned in the July Water Department GM staff report insert, the Water Department 

entered into a new service agreement with Hach to calibrate and maintain all analyzing 

equipment at all District potable water sources. Antonio from Hach Co. came out for his first 

visit on August 31st. He worked to repair the damaged Turbidimeters at SR4 and calibrated 

and performed maintenance on the analyzers at SR3. Because of time constraints, Antonio 

was unable to make it to the San Simeon wells. Another visit for the San Simeon wells and 

more work to be done at SR4 will be conducted soon. 

9. Water Production & Well Levels for August 2018 are attached. As of the writing of this 

report, water is still flowing past both Santa Rosa well locations, which is one of the key 

54



 
 

 

factors as to why Santa Rosa well levels have remained high. Staff continues the practice of 

alternating wells daily, which also helps maintain adequate levels.  

10. The following table summarizes key activities that Water Department staff responded to 

during the month of August:  

 

Activity # 
Completed 

Manual Meter Reads/Locates for Billing 
Purposes 

228 

Customer assists for high water usage on 
customer side of meter 

15 

Locking/Unlocking Water Meters 1 

Meter Shut-Off at Owner’s Request 1 

Replaced Meter Stops 1 

Replaced Meter Dials and Transmitters 31 

Repairs of distribution system leaks 5 

After-Hours System Alarm Responses 3 

USA Locations 14 

Water Service Line Replacement 1 

Water Service Line Information Requests 4 

Meter Box Replacement at Owner’s 
Request 

1 

Fire Hydrant Raising and Maintenance 1 

 
SWF: 
It’s been a busy time for the SWF, as we focus on making sure the facility can operate when needed. 
We are planning on running in test mode during October to ensure our readiness while also receiving 
valuable training from Senior Operator Larry Moore before he retires at the end of October.  Our test 
run was discussed with the Water Board’s Jon Rokke during an earlier July 20, 2018 field meeting.  
This test will operate the plant in a recycle mode in which non-potable source water will be treated and 
then recombined with RO reject to return the non-potable water in its original form back to the 
percolation ponds.  
Here is a summary on some of our recent efforts: 

• New chemical distribution lines have been pulled. The old lines were deteriorated from UV 

exposure and needed to be up-sized. 

• Dosing pumps have been cleaned and calibrated. 

• Chemical tank storage has been retro-fitted and a failing tank has been replaced. 

55



 
 

 

  
Photo of Recent Work by Chemical Supplier Brenntag in Replacing the Sodium Hypochlorite tank, 
which had a bad fitting.   
 
While the bigger projects were being performed, we have also been inspecting and flushing wells that 
have been idle.  For example, reinjection well, RIW1, had turbidity readings topping 100 NTUs.  
Following our flushing efforts, we have since reached a .57 NTU turbidity reading consistently over the 
past two weeks. 

 
Efforts also continue on emptying the impoundment basin per the Water Board approved closure plan.  
This requires sampling, field measurements, data logging, and coordinating with Water Board staff to 
ensure our compliance with the closure plan, and they are satisfied with our efforts.  The impoundment 
basin level is significantly decreasing as it gets lower and the volume per foot of depth decreases due 
to its shape. The lowering of the impoundment basin to less than 400,000 gallons is due to our 

56



 
 

 

consistent pumping, as well as favorable weather1. As of September 15, 2018, the impoundment basin 
had 47 inches of water depth remaining.    
Staff is also evaluating several approaches on how to best remove the silt and remaining water in the 
impoundment basin once its reaches 18-inches in depth (a trigger point called out within the approved 
closure plan). A site evaluation with one potential firm that provides such services is scheduled for 
September 20th. The information we obtain from such research will be used to develop the best 
approach towards final emptying of the impoundment basin.   

 
Photo of impoundment basin on August 30, 2018 from its northwestern corner looking south. 
Beyond our work on the SWF, we continue to assist the Water Department on leak repairs and in other 
areas as needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                               
1 There was over 7 million gallons in the pond during March of 2017. 

57



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  

1. CCSD Vehicle Inventory 
2. Production and Well Graphs 
3. Public Records Requests and Responses 
 

58



Special District Risk Management Authority
Vehicle Inventory for Program Year 2018-19

Cambria Community Services District 
YearItem VIN Termination

Date
Make / Model Type GVW Value Comp / Coll

Limits
Effective

Date
AL Net 

Premium
APD Comp 

Gross Premium
 APD Coll 

Gross Premium

Ford F150 2005  6,650 $19,198 Pick-Up Truck 3 $500 / $1,000 $107.05$293.32 $212.62

Ford F250 2012  8,000 $20,640 Pick-Up Truck 10 $500 / $1,000 $140.58$293.32 $274.96

Ford F250 2012  8,000 $20,640 Pick-Up Truck 11 $500 / $1,000 $140.58$293.32 $274.96

Ford F-250 2016  1,000 $32,612 Pick-Up Truck 07/01/2018 12 $500 / $1,000 $0.00$0.00 $0.00

FORD F-250 4X4 2016  10,002 $32,612 Medium Truck 13 $500 / $1,000 $263.30$419.03 $508.08

Ford F250 2012  10,000 $33,403 Pick-Up Truck 14 $500 / $1,000 $207.73$293.32 $399.64

Ford F150 2013  7,500 $36,273 Pick-Up Truck 15 $500 / $1,000 $239.37$293.32 $460.86

Ford F350 2012  10,000 $24,104 Pick-Up Truck 16 $500 / $1,000 $140.58$293.32 $274.96

Ford Fusion 2013  4,500 $18,383 Auto Non-Emergency 26 $500 / $1,000 $123.12$293.32 $244.90

FMC Sentinel Pump Truck 1988  38,000 $165,000 Fire Truck 37 $500 / $1,000 $109.14$377.13 $182.61

Pierce Dash Pumper 2006  43,500 $441,800 Fire Truck 41 $500 / $1,000 $109.14$377.13 $182.61

Ford F2504x4 2017  9,000 $35,265 Pick-Up Truck 44 $500 / $1,000 $318.95$293.32 $615.04

Pierce Arrow XT PUC 2017  43,500 $664,197 Fire Truck 45 $500 / $1,000 $167.97$377.13 $281.11

Ford Pick-up Truck 1996  4,740 $16,500 Pick-Up Truck 07/01/2018 58 N/A / N/A $0.00

Ford F-350 SD Crew Cab 2003  9,700 $48,000 Fire Pick-Up or Light Truck 60 $500 / $1,000 $163.24$175.99 $310.66

Peabody Meyers Vactor 1990  16,000 $142,958 Medium Truck 62 $500 / $1,000 $559.02$419.03 $1,052.02

Ford Dump Truck 1991  22,000 $15,000 Heavy Truck 104 N/A / N/A $628.55

Ford F-350 2003  9,900 $38,317 Pick-Up Truck 112 $500 / $1,000 $207.73$293.32 $399.64

Chevrolet Stepvan 1989  6,350 $23,894 Van (0-8 Passengers) 114 N/A / N/A $293.32

Pierce Kenworth Water Tender 2002  38,000 $215,500 Fire Truck 118 $500 / $1,000 $109.14$377.13 $182.61

This is a listing of your currently scheduled items with SDRMA

Special District Risk Management Authority

www.sdrma.org

1112 I Street Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814-2865
Tel 916.231.4141 or 800.537.7790 Fax 916.231.4111

Report Date: 08/29/2018

Page 1  

59



Special District Risk Management Authority
Vehicle Inventory for Program Year 2018-19

Cambria Community Services District 
YearItem VIN Termination

Date
Make / Model Type GVW Value Comp / Coll

Limits
Effective

Date
AL Net 

Premium
APD Comp 

Gross Premium
 APD Coll 

Gross Premium

Ford F150 2005  6,650 $19,198 Pick-Up Truck 130 $500 / $1,000 $107.05$293.32 $212.62

Ford Pick-Up 1999  4,500 $17,960 Pick-Up Truck 132 N/A / N/A $293.32

Ford Pick-up Truck 1996  6,250 $16,203 Pick-Up Truck 134 N/A / N/A $293.32

Dodge Quad Cab PU 1500 1999  3,000 $25,400 Fire Pick-Up or Light Truck 148 $500 / $1,000 $99.33$175.99 $191.13

Ford F-350 2003  9,900 $35,575 Pick-Up Truck 172 $500 / $1,000 $207.73$293.32 $399.64

Ford F250 Super Duty 4 wheel drive 2017  10,000 $39,344 Fire Pick-Up or Light Truck 196 $500 / $1,000 $152.59$175.99 $294.15

Ford F150 2018  9,000 $22,598 Pick-Up Truck 197 $500 / $1,000 $215.86$293.32 $423.02

$2,220,574 Totals

This is a listing of your currently scheduled items with SDRMA

Special District Risk Management Authority

www.sdrma.org

1112 I Street Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814-2865
Tel 916.231.4141 or 800.537.7790 Fax 916.231.4111

Report Date: 08/29/2018

Page 2  

60



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 
TOTAL

YEAR

S.S. 14.87 15.89 25.03 32.22 38.72 39.21 32.75 22.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 221.50
S.R. 29.65 23.27 12.99 6.85 5.02 7.89 21.99 30.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 138.40

SS & SR TOTAL 44.51 39.15 38.02 39.06 43.74 47.11 54.74 53.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 359.90
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 31.92 18.84 40.96 45.42 46.33 34.69 24.65 18.90 25.89 28.39 19.19 23.18 358.36
S.R. 6.88 14.33 5.95 9.76 17.86 28.23 32.52 32.01 16.80 12.13 19.96 20.92 217.36

SS & SR TOTAL 38.80 33.18 46.91 55.18 64.19 62.92 57.17 50.90 42.69 40.53 39.15 44.11 575.72
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 16.43 9.51 19.84 21.88 24.30 30.90 30.40 29.68 29.02 8.07 5.82 21.55 247.39
S.R. 17.87 27.34 16.71 15.60 15.74 13.87 20.45 18.12 16.65 34.27 31.97 18.30 246.89

SS & SR TOTAL 34.30 36.86 36.55 37.47 40.04 44.76 50.85 47.80 45.67 42.34 37.79 39.85 494.28
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.33 7.04 5.70 23.07

S.S. 19.95 16.65 17.16 17.79 16.18 14.14 15.14 17.39 20.36 26.17 23.74 21.23 225.89
S.R. 14.77 14.90 20.53 20.68 20.99 26.51 29.51 27.78 21.94 16.05 13.57 13.90 241.13

SS & SR TOTAL 34.72 31.55 37.69 38.47 37.17 40.65 44.65 45.17 42.30 42.22 37.31 35.13 467.02
AWTP 5.55 14.34 12.49 7.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.68 8.07 6.29 10.89 68.92

S.S. 22.93 16.97 24.90 25.03 19.39 14.40 11.94 0.00 0.76 24.32 13.74 23.81 198.17
S.R. 34.69 19.85 10.00 10.44 18.88 24.19 30.89 43.09 36.26 12.06 18.63 9.62 268.59

SS & SR TOTAL 57.62 36.82 34.90 35.47 38.27 38.59 42.82 43.09 37.01 36.37 32.36 33.44 466.76

S.S. 50.55 47.40 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 72.32 57.73 29.84 26.72 28.61 593.16
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 3.50 7.62 22.56 25.38 25.61 139.91

SS & SR TOTAL 50.55 47.40 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 75.82 65.35 52.40 52.11 54.22 733.07

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73
S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01

SS & SR TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16
S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72

SS & SR TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51

SS & SR TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94
S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54

SS & SR TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69
S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92

SS & SR TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57

SS & SR TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.1820
07

20
07

20
10

20
10

20
09

20
09

20
08

20
08

20
13

20
13

20
12

20
12

20
11

20
11

20
16

20
16

20
15

20
15

20
14

20
14

20
17

20
17

DIFFERENCE
5.72 5.98 -8.89 -16.11 -20.45 -15.81 -2.43 2.67

(Current YR - Previous YR)

20
18

20
18

-49.57

2018
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

2.80 -13.31 -33.76 -52.00 -49.33
Difference by Time Period
(Current Period - Previous 

Period)
5.72 11.69

61



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 
TOTAL

YEAR

2018
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96
S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14

SS & SR TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26
S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98

SS & SR TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52
S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11

SS & SR TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83
S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05

SS & SR TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77
S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71

SS & SR TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68

SS & SR TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05
S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31
S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16

SS & SR TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51
S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29

SS & SR TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.67 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99
S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26

SS & SR TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94
S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90

SS & SR TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10

SS & SR TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50
S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90

SS & SR TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30
S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.4099

2

99
2

19
95

19
95

19
94

19
94

19
93

19
93

19
98

19
98

19
97

19
97

19
96

19
96

20
01

20
01

20
00

20
00

19
99

19
99

20
04

20
04

20
03

20
03

20
02

20
02

20
06

20
06

20
05

20
05

62



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 
TOTAL

YEAR

2018
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

SS & SR TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90
S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80

SS & SR TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14
S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66

SS & SR TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60

SS & SR TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90

SS & SR TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

19
89

19
89

19
88

19
88

19 19

19
91

19
91

19
90

19
90

63



DAY OF 
MONTH

SS #1 SS #2 SS #3 SR4 SR1 SR3
ALL WELLS 
TOTAL 

(galx1000)

Daily 
Pumpage 
(Acre‐Feet)

Month‐to‐Date 
(Acre‐Feet)

AWTP Santa Rosa
SR3 

(galx1,000)
SR4 (gal)

1 91.00 112.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 271.00 475.00 1.46 1 14.00 1606522.00
2 158.00 178.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 219.00 565.00 1.73 3 12.00 1606522.00
3 141.00 160.00 0.00 157.00 0.00 126.00 584.00 1.79 5 5.00 1606522.00
4 134.00 151.00 0.00 171.00 0.00 154.00 610.00 1.87 7 6.00 1610931.00
5 111.00 127.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 435.00 673.00 2.07 9 14.00 1615300.00
6 73.00 82.00 0.00 7.00 0.00 410.00 572.00 1.76 11 15.00 1615300.00
7 102.00 116.00 0.00 206.00 0.00 116.00 540.00 1.66 12 6.00 1615300.00
8 103.00 117.00 0.00 200.00 1.00 194.00 615.00 1.89 14 8.00 1619744.00
9 125.00 139.00 0.00 195.00 0.00 149.00 608.00 1.87 16 6.00 1624056.00
10 129.00 144.00 0.00 8.00 0.00 289.00 570.00 1.75 18 11.00 1624056.00
11 173.00 196.00 0.00 138.00 1.00 210.00 718.00 2.20 20 6.00 1624056.00
12 122.00 138.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 299.00 559.00 1.72 22 11.00 1624056.00
13 105.00 128.00 0.00 5.00 0.00 268.00 506.00 1.55 23 12.00 1624056.00
14 140.00 148.00 0.00 185.00 0.00 139.00 612.00 1.88 25 3.00 1628450.00
15 63.00 76.00 0.00 182.00 0.00 153.00 474.00 1.45 27 8.00 1632794.00
16 129.00 146.00 0.00 178.00 0.00 191.00 644.00 1.98 29 6.00 1632794.00
17 114.00 130.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 317.00 561.00 1.72 30 12.00 1632794.00
18 165.00 190.00 0.00 79.00 0.00 203.00 637.00 1.95 32 8.00 1632794.00
19 209.00 233.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153.00 595.00 1.83 34 3.00 1632794.00
20 4.00 180.00 0.00 23.00 0.00 227.00 434.00 1.33 35 11.00 1632794.00
21 194.00 10.00 0.00 130.00 0.00 198.00 532.00 1.63 37 9.00 1637189.00
22 0.00 200.00 0.00 126.00 0.00 202.00 528.00 1.62 39 9.00 1637189.00
23 35.00 0.00 0.00 181.00 0.00 372.00 588.00 1.80 41 11.00 1637189.00
24 0.00 134.00 0.00 146.00 0.00 133.00 413.00 1.27 42 6.00 1637189.00
25 88.00 207.00 0.00 145.00 0.00 193.00 633.00 1.94 44 9.00 1641563.00
26 75.00 240.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245.00 560.00 1.72 45 8.00 1641563.00
27 0.00 303.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 310.00 613.00 1.88 47 12.00 1641563.00
28 162.00 0.00 0.00 181.00 0.00 154.00 497.00 1.53 49 6.00 1641563.00
29 1.00 172.00 0.00 165.00 1.00 168.00 507.00 1.56 50 5.00 1641563.00
30 152.00 0.00 0.00 181.00 1.00 171.00 505.00 1.55 52 6.00 1641563.00
31 0.00 179.00 0.00 170.00 1.00 178.00 528.00 1.62 54 6.00 1645881.00

TOTALS 3098.00 4336.00 0.00 3169.00 6.00 6847.00 17456.00 53.57 (galx1000) 0.00 0.00 (galx1000) 250.00 39.36
Daily AVG 99.94 139.87 0.00 102.23 0.19 220.87 563.10 1.73 (ACRE‐FEET) 0.00 0.00 (ACRE‐FEET) 0.77 0.12 (ACRE‐FEET)

100% 100% 100%
Corrected 3098.00 4336.00 0.00 3169.00 6.00 6847.00 17456.00 53.57 (ACRE‐FEET)

DATE METER
9/1/2018 58.00

9/31/18 61.00

22.81 ‐0.01 22.81 3.00
30.76 30.76 0.01
53.57 53.56
0.00

Total Recirc (AF)

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUGUST PRODUCTION
Mitigation Both Creeks 

(galx1000)
WELLS (galx1000)

Meter Correction Factors from Calibration done

ANALYZER METER

WELLFIELD 
CORRECTION

NET 
PRODUCTION 

(AF)

BACKWASH TOTAL

San Simeon Total 0.00 Total Recirc (ccf)
GROSS PRODUCTION (AF)

SS & SR TOTAL 0.00

CORRECTIONS Mitigation

AWTP Total

Santa Rosa Total 0.00

64



9/5/18 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 9/5/18

Reference

Distance Point Depth of

Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea

Code Water Level Level Level             Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 34.10 83.42 49.32

SR4 31.11 82.00 50.89

SR3 20.15 54.30 34.15

SR1 18.22 46.40 28.18

RP#1 46.25

RP#2 33.11 Not Read

21R3 9.73 12.88 3.15 41268

WBE 13.32 16.87 3.55

WBW 13.71 17.02 3.31

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 31.17 FEET

      CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = 50.89 FEET

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 8.11 11.36 3.25

MW4 12.52 15.95 3.43

MW1 18.40 42.11 23.71

MW2 17.77 38.10 20.33

MW3 23.56 49.56 26.00

9M1 27.19 65.63 38.44

9P2 12.48 19.11 6.63

9P7 12.79 20.69 7.90

9L1 20.39 27.33 6.94

RIW 16.67 25.41 8.74

SS4 17.40 25.92 8.52 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = + 1.89

MIW 18.07 29.89 11.82

SS3 21.20 33.73 12.53

SS2 20.21 33.16 12.95

SS1 20.09 32.37 12.28

11B1 35.47 105.43 69.96

11C1 29.13 98.20 69.07

PFNW 25.52 93.22 67.70

10A1 33.26 78.18 44.92

10G2 25.21 62.95 37.74

10G1 23.51 59.55 36.04

10F2 31.80 66.92 35.12

10M2 30.12 55.21 25.09

9J3 23.05 43.45 20.40

lagoon 20.35 mitigation errosion none 

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1,SS2 & SS3  = 12.59 FEET

revised 6/6/16

9/5/18

2/17/2015

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

Reference point on 16d1,miw1,miw2,miw3,9p7,riw,miw1,ss1,ss2 and ss3 updated

65



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

1
5

A
P

R
L

1
5

M
A

Y

1
5

J
U

N
E

1
5

J
U

L
Y

1
5

A
U

G
.

1
5

S
E

P
T

1
5

O
C

T
.

1
5

N
O

V
.

1
5

D
E

C
.

1
5

J
A

N
.

1
5

F
E

B
.

1
5

M
A

R
.

1
5

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

v
e

 S
e

a
 L

e
v
e

l 
(F

e
e

t)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - Current

1988  (566 af) 1989  (622 af) 1990  (457 af) 1991  (405 af) 1992  (542 af) 1993  (691 af)

1994  (538 af) 1995  (676 af) 1996  (718 af) 1997  (679 af) 1998  (707 af) 1999  (775 af)

2000  (799 af) 2001  (745 af) 2002 (728 af) 2003 (709 af) 2004 (612 af) 2005 (652 af)

2006 (613 af) 2007 (618 af) 2008 (707 af) 2009 (699 af) 2010 (672 af) 2011 (682 af)

2012 (724 af) 2013 (733 af) 2014 (466 af) 2015 (467 af) 2016 (494 af) 2017 (575 af)

2018

66



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

E
le

v
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
v
e
 S

e
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
(F

e
e
t)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Mid-March 2018/2019 levels to date and 

1988 to Current Min, Max, & Average
Maximum Levels Minimum Levels Average Levels 2018

67



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

1
5

A
p
r

1
5

M
a
y

1
5

J
u
n
e

1
5

J
u
ly

1
5

A
u
g

1
5

S
e
p
t

1
5

O
c
t

1
5

N
o
v

1
5

D
e
c

1
5

J
a
n

1
5

F
e
b

1
5

M
a
r

1
5

E
le

v
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
v
e
 S

e
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
(F

e
e
t)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels

Last 7 years
March, 2011  - Current

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

68



-5.00

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

1988 to Current Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Purple (hatched) and Green (solid) bars

25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2018 reads

69



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

55.00

60.00

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 A
B

O
V

E
 S

E
A

 L
E

V
E

L

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELL LEVELS
March 15th, 2018 - Current

23R SR4 SR3 SR1 WBE  Indicates CCSD Production wells

70



Public Records Requests and Responses 
 

There were 11 Public Record Requests received since August 23, 2018 by the following citizens. The listing 
below is representative of the request and does not necessarily reflect the extensive nature of each 
request.  

8/20/2018: Gordon Heinrichs 1. I have requested the CDM Smith SWF contract with the CCSD for three 
amendments or change orders to the original order. You mentioned they are online, but I couldn’t find 
it. 

On August 21, 2018, the CCSD responded to Gordon Heinrichs’s 8/20/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

The responsive documents are located here: https://spaces.hightail.com/space/BS77aQGTil 

8/21/2018: Tracy McConnell 1. Our City Clerk, Dana Swanson, has asked me to check with you on your 
written procedure for tabulating the Prop 218 protests. Anthony had told that he helped you on this and 
that you are the person with a great written procedure on it. Would you be able to share that with us 
please? 

On August 21, 2018, the CCSD responded to Tracy McConnell’s 8/21/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

Please find Resolution 14-2009 attached. 
 

8/23/2018: Jack Posemsky 1. I have 013-231-006, not 008. 009 & 002 are correct. Can you revise info for 
006? There are 2 tenants in the automotive building; Auto repairs and AAA Towing. 3rd tenant in the 
small residence on 002. I assume all are using water legally per CCSD. Can you send me a copy of the 
most recent water bill(s) for these 3 units. 

On August 23, 2018, the CCSD responded to Jack Posemsky’s 8/21/2018 Public Records Request with the 
following:  

The county has 4337 Bridge St. as APN 013-231-008. -006 does not have a street number or water 
allocation associated with it. For the automotive building, 0.33 EDUs are required for a garage, so two 
tenants in that building would fit within the .83 allocation. The request for billing records is a Public 
Records Request, so I am including our Deputy District Clerk on this response. She will ensure your 
request is handled appropriately.  
 
Please find attached the bills for 4363 Bridge St and 4337 Bridge St. There is no bill for 4371 Bridge St. 
 
8/30/2018: Anonymous 1. I request the following documents in electronic format please: 1. All CCSD 
Directors emails, sent, received, responses etc. from their CCSD email accounts and any and all personal 
email accounts. For the time period of 8/20- 8/31/2018. 2. All CCSD Directors cell phone billing 
statements and text messages for the period of 8/20/2018 – 8/31/2018. 3. They also asked to be 
advised if there are exceptions to responsive documents they would like to have the exception 
identified for any and all exceptions. 
 

71

https://spaces.hightail.com/space/BS77aQGTil


On September 10, 2018, the CCSD responded to Anonymous’ 8/30/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

We have concluded that the District possesses certain identifiable records that fall within the scope of 
your request. The District is in the process of reviewing those records to determine whether any are 
exempt from disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act or other laws. We expect that review to be 
completed by Monday, September 24, 2018. When the review is completed we will notify you that the 
disclosable records are available in electronic format. 

9/5/2018: Jerry Walser 1. Please provide a listing of violent crimes committed for the specific address: 
2255 Main Street and the reporting district. This is the immediate area around the address and may be a 
Beat, RD, Zone, Grid, Radius around the address, neighborhood, etc. Please include your reporting 
district inclusive of the address for each of the following crimes: 1) aggravated assault 2) murder 3) 
rape/sexual assault and 4) robbery. Please indicate the corresponding reporting district for each 
address. Please include your crime code key for assistance in our interpreting your crime information. 
Please fax, email or mail this information to GMR. 

On September 10, 2018, the CCSD responded to Jerry Walser’s 9/5/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

There are no documents responsive to your request. We suggest you contact the San Luis Obispo County 
Sheriff’s Department. 

9/6/2018: Paul Nugent 1. I submitted a request on August 25, 2018 for information about how the 
district is accounting for the personal use of district vehicles and fuel cost. I followed up to that email on 
August 28, 2018 with an additional question asking for an explanation for why my original email was 
routed through a district employee rather than sent directly to the elected representatives I was trying 
to contact at the email address board@cambriacsd.org. I was also in attendance last Thursday when it 
was announced that you would be seeking terms for a separation with Mr. Gruber. I was hopeful that 
the Board was making the decision towards transparency and I decided I would refrain from asking my 
question at that time as a public comment. I did provide the 2 emails I had sent to the board and asked 
they be submitted for the public comment that day. For a board that is working towards establishing 
trust I am once again not impressed by the amount of transparency or accountability that seems to be 
acceptable within the organization your are supposedly in charge of and leading. We are now over 10 
days from my original message and I have yet to get any response to the important and basic questions I 
asked. Please provide an answer or explanation for why this information is not readily available. I am not 
asking for this because I am trying to create a larger issue for the district. I asked that specific question 
because I thought it was a very easy answer for any organization that is being run above board and 
properly.  

On September 17, 2018, the CCSD responded to Paul Nugent’s 9/6/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

We recognize that we have a duty under the Public Records Act to make a good faith effort to search for 
documents that are responsive to your request. Please narrow your request to specific identifiable 
documents or records. We are happy to assist you in your efforts to identify specific documents. 
However, we have enclosed the Cambria Community Services District’s Vehicle Policy and fuel usage for 

72

mailto:board@cambriacsd.org


the Facilities & Resources gasoline and diesel pumps in July and August 2018. Emergency vehicles are 
not subject to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations for personal use of a vehicle by an 
employee, because the vehicles are for emergency use. The specialize utility repair vehicles taken home 
by Water and Wastewater employees are for the employer’s benefit, as it shortens the response time 
for emergencies. The use for the employer’s benefit is also not considered personal use by the Internal 
Revenue Service. 

9/6/2018: Katie Ryan 1. I am requesting the gas leak report for 2397 Kerry Avenue in Cambria. 

On September 6, 2018, the CCSD responded to Katie Ryan’s 9/6/2018 Public Records Request with the 
following: 

Enclosed is the fire report for 2397 Kerry Avenue in Cambria. 

9/10/2018: Claire Anderson 1. Copies of any and all documents relating to property 625 Worcester 
Drive, Cambria, CA 93428. 

On September 14, 2018, the CCSD responded to Claire Anderson’s 9/10/2018 Public Records Request 
with the following: 

Enclosed is documents related to 625 Worcester Drive, Cambria CA 93428. 

9/14/2018: Marisol Hernandez 1. The Center for Contract Compliance is a nonprofit Labor-Management 
Committee that specializes in monitoring public works projects. Please consider this a formal request for 
copies of documents on the above referenced project pursuant to the California Public Records Act, 
Government Code Section 6250, et. seq. We are requesting: 1. Copy of the bid results showing the 5 
lowest bidders name, license number and bid amount. 2. Copy of the plan holders list. 3. Name and 
license number of the awarded general/multi-prime contractor. 4. Copy of the subcontractors list of the 
awarded general/multi-prime contractor submitted at time of bid, even if left blank by the contractor. 5. 
Copy of the original bid advertisement with proof of publication.  

9/14/2018: Bonni Pepper 1. A copy of the incident report from 12/23/2017 at the Cambria lights 
market. 

On September 19, 2018, the CCSD responded to Bonni Pepper’s 9/14/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following: 

Enclosed is the incident report from 12/23/2017 at 2950 Santa Rosa Creek Road. 

9/19/2018: Julie Tacker 1. Please provide an electronic copy of the separation agreement with Mr. 
Gruber. 

 

 

 

73



S.R. 7.B.74



S.R. 7.B.75



S.R. 7.B.76



S.R. 7.B.77



S.R. 7.B.78



S.R. 7.B.79



S.R. 7.B.80



S.R. 7.B.81



S.R. 7.B.82



S.R. 7.B.83



S.R. 7.B.84



S.R. 7.B.85



S.R. 7.B.86



S.R. 7.B.87



S.R. 7.B.88



S.R. 7.B.89



S.R. 7.B.90



S.R. 7.B.91



S.R. 7.B.92



S.R. 7.B.93



S.R. 7.B.94



S.R. 7.B.95



S.R. 7.B.96



S.R. 7.B.97


	Meeting Agenda



